HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 2, 2009
3:06 p.m

3:06: 20 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 3:06 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve M ke Hawker, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Vice-Chair
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Anna Faircl ough
Representative Richard Foster
Representative Les Gara

Representati ve Reggi e Joul e

Representative Mke Kelly

Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Allan Austerman

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Cathy Minoz, Sponsor; Representative Beth
Kertulla, Sponsor; John Bitney, Staff, Representative John
Harris, Sponsor; Dan Fauske, CEQ Executive Director, Al aska
Housi ng Finance Corporation, Departnment of Revenue; Joe
Doogl er, Chief Financial Oficer, Al aska Housing Finance
Corporation, Departnent of Revenue; Dirk Mffet, Staff,

Representati ve Bob Lynn, Sponsor ; Jerry Luckhaupt,
Legi sl ative Counci |, Di vi si on of Legal Ser vi ces;
Representative Bob Lynn, Sponsor; Jane Pierson, Staff,
Representati ve Jay Ranas, Sponsor ; Doug Wbol i ver,
Adm ni strative  Attorney, Al aska Court Syst em Anne
Carpeneti, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Legal Servi ces

Section-Juneau, Crimnal Division, Departnent of Law.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Whitney Brewster, Director, Dvision of Mtor Vehicles,
Depart ment of Adm nistration.

SUMVARY
HB 199 APPROPS: NON- TRANSPORTATI ON STl MULUS

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



HB 199 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

HB 161 JUNEAU SUBPORT BLDG AHFC BLDG

HB 161 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

HB 3 REQUI REMENTS FOR DRI VER S LI CENSE/ | . D.

CSHS 3 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Committee with a
“do pass” recomendation and with a previously
publ i shed fiscal note: FN1 (ADM).

HB 98 ALCOHOL: M NOR CONSUM NG LOCAL OPTI ON

CSHB 98 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with
“no recommendation” and with a new zero fiscal
note fromthe Departnent of Public Safety and two
previously published fiscal notes: FN1 (CRT), FN2

(LAW .

#hb199
HOUSE BILL NO. 199

"An Act making supplenental appropriations and capital
appropriations; anmending appropriations; and providing
for an effective date."

3:06: 26 PM

Co- Chair Hawker MOVED to ADOPT CSHB 199 (FIN), version 26-
GH1260\ E, Kane, 4/1/09 as a working draft.

Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for discussion.

Co-Chair Hawker infornmed the conmttee that the intent of
the draft was to forward open and transparent discussion
regarding American Recover and Reinvestnment Act (ARRA)
funds. He detailed that the proposed commttee substitute
(CS) keeps all the state’s options open by accepting and
appropriating all nonies available under ARRA for Al askan
non-transportati on projects.

Co- Chair Hawker stressed that the CS is open for anmendnent
and further evaluation. He noted that one particular item
Part B of the $20.7 mllion education program had caused
concern, but was still a work in progress. In the draft CS,
the noney is appropriated to the Capital Incone Fund as a
pl acehol der. He enphasized that the discussion was still
ahead; the issue would be dealt with in the capital budget
before the end of the | egislative session.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



Co- Chai r Hawker acknow edged questions that had been raised
regarding the potential $15.6 million direct deposit into
t he unenpl oynent insurance (U) trust fund. He pointed out
that the anmount does not need to be appropriated in the CS
as the noney will automatically be deposited into the trust
if separate |egislation passes revising the base periods for
participating in unenpl oynent insurance.

3:10:12 PM

Representative Fairclough requested an explanation of
| egislative intent.

Co-Chair Hawker detailed that Section 10 of the work draft
is an initial suggestion for legislative intent. The section
states in | anguage as strong as legally allowed that the use
of stimulus funds will not create obligations to the state
to replace the funds, and that existing progranms will not be
expanded. The intent is to use the funds to continue
existing activities or deal with issues such as deferred
mai nt enance. He added that another inportant part refuses
federal stinmulus noney that would violate the strong
constitutional rights to privacy enjoyed by Al askans.

3:11: 36 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze W THDREW hi s OBJECTI ON

Representative Kelly wanted an opportunity to | ook over the
proposed CS and the intent |anguage. Co-Chair Hawker assured
him that the CS is a working docunment subject to conmttee
scrutiny.

Vi ce-Chair Thomas noticed that the Ofice of the Governor
had $1 million in discretionary funds and asked whether the
| egi sl ature could spend the noney if the governor refused
the funds. Co-Chair Hawker did not believe so.

3:13:41 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being no
further objection, the work draft was adopt ed.

HB 199 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

#hb161
HOUSE BI LL NO. 161

"An Act relating to the Alaska Mental Health Trust
Authority Subport Ofice Building; authorizing the
i ssuance  of certificates of participation for
construction of the building and authorizing the use of
up to $25,000,000 fromthe nmental health trust fund for

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 02/09 3:06 P. M



construction of the building; approving |eases of all
or part of the building by the Departnment of
Adm ni stration; and providing for an effective date."

3:14: 22 PM

Representati ve Foster spoke in support of the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE CATHY MJUNQZ, SPONSCR, addressed specific
guestions that had been asked previously by conmttee
menbers. She referred to additional materials covering cost
conpari son data, due diligence information, and a
construction anal ysis.

Representative Minoz addressed concerns that the proposed
bui | ding was considered Cl ass A space. She detailed that the
proposed construction cost was $315 per square foot, which
is considered Class B space when conpared to office space
around the state. New office space ranges from $200 to $500
dol | ars per square foot.

Representative Moz turned to the question of square
footage price and reported that a <ceiling had been
established at $3.50 per square foot; the intent was to
negotiate down from the ceiling. She pointed to extensive
data regarding cost conparisons for Anchorage and Juneau.
She rem nded the conmttee that the square footage costs do
not include investnents that the state nakes on | ease space
to make the space neet information technology (IT),
[ighting, and other requirenments. For exanple, the Frontier
Building in Anchorage is |eased at $3.00 per square foot,
but recently required over $1 nmllion in upgrades to make
t he space adequate.

Representative Minoz discussed concerns raised about the
owner of the Departnment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent
(DLVWD) bui I ding. She noted that the state is not interested
in renegotiating a |ease contract at the site because of
envi ronmental and repair issues.

Representati ve Minoz enphasized that the proposed project
provi ded great opportunity for the state of Al aska and for
the Mental Health Trust; the state would save $13 nillion
and the trust would be able to devel op a key asset.

Representative Minoz nentioned a proposed anendnment that
woul d al |l ow t he Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC) to
purchase an adm nistrative building in Anchorage using AHFC
funds.

3:19: 54 PM

Vi ce-Chair Thomas puzzled over the |ocation of the building
and questioned the price that would be paid. He thought for

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



the price the building should be where the subport building
used to be. Representative Minoz responded that the project
architects could speak specifically to site issues; she was
presenting the nmental health trust’s proposal.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that the bill would be heard again
t he next day.

Representative Kelly comented that his previous questions
had been answered conpletely.

3:23:15 PM

Co- Chair Hawker stated sone of his concerns for the record.
He had questions regarding cost, value, quality issues,
financing alternatives, and the structure of the bill.

Representative Crawford requested a short explanation as to
why it would be to the state’'s advantage to have soneone
el se build, own, and operate the building instead of owning
the building itself. He understood that the deal would be
increasingly good for the nental health trust over tinme and
wonder ed how the state woul d benefit.

Representati ve Munoz enphasi zed that the mental health trust
and the state should be regarded as partners. The state
works very closely with the trust and encourages it to
develop its assets. She thought the project provided the
trust with an opportunity to develop their portfolio and
provide a revenue streamto beneficiaries over the course of
the project. The state would benefit as a funding partner
with the trust.

REPRESENTATI VE BETH KERTTULA, SPONSOR, added that another
advantage to the state would be saving $13.5 million.

3:25:59 PM

Representative Crawford did not wunderstand how the state
woul d save $13.5 nmillion. He thought the trust could gain by
selling the land and investing the earnings. He had been
told that the state had paid over $50 million in rent for
t he DLWD bui |l ding. He asked why the state should rent rather
than buy and why the state should not appropriate noney
directly to the trust instead of give it noney through rent.
Representative Minoz responded that the proposal involves
three different sites. The Departnent of Public Safety (DPS)
building on Waittier Street, was built in 1970 to last ten
years, but has been occupied by the state for nearly 40
years. Renovation of the DPS building and the second
bui |l di ng, the Departnent of Fish and Gane (DFG building in
Dougl as, would cost nuch nore than $8.5 nillion. She added
that the $13 mllion savings does not include replacenent

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 02/09 3:06 P. M



costs that the state foresees for both the DPS and DFG
bui | di ngs.

3:28: 25 PM

Vi ce-Chair Thomas queried whether the buildings would have
60-foot atriunms and whether they would neet the new state
energy efficiency codes being proposed because of the
stimul us funds.

Co-Chair Stoltze thought the architect could address the
guesti on.

Co-Chair Stoltze MOWED Anendnent 1, 26-LS0605\W 1, Cook,
4/ 2/ 09 (copy on file):

Page 1, lines 2-3:
Del ete “the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority”
Insert “a separate trust |and devel opnent account”

Page 1, line 6, followng “Adm nistration;”:
Insert *“authorizing the Al aska Housing Finance
Corporation to acquire the building that it
occurpies for an anound that does not exceed
$14, 500, 000;”

Page 5, follow ng line 20:

| nsert a new bill section to read:
“*Sec.8. The uncodified law of the State of Alaska is
anended by adding a new section to read:

AUTHORI ZI NG THE ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE CORPORATI ON
TP ACQURE A BULD NG The Al aska Housing Finance
Corporation is authorized to acquire the building in
Anchorage it occupies on the effective date of this Act
for an amount that does not exceed $14,500,000. This
section constitutes the approval required by AS
18.55.100(d) and AS 18.56.090(d) for that acquisition.”

Renunber the follow ng bill sections accordingly.
Co- Chair Hawker OBJECTED for DI SCUSSI ON.

JOHN BI TNEY, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE JOHN HARRI S, SPONSOR and
CHAI RVAN, LEQ SLATIVE COUNCIL, reported that the intent of
the anmendnent was to bring forth a proposal. He explained
that the Anchorage Legislative Information Ofice (LIO is
on a year-to-year | ease and needs office space.
Conversations with AHFC about space and financing options
led to a cost-savings idea. The corporation has needed space
as well and had calculated costs for a nortgage that could
result in savings of several mllion dollars.

3:34: 04 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 02/09 3:06 P. M



DAN FAUSKE, CEQ EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE
CORPORATI ON, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, provided a neno
regardi ng the proposal (copy on file). He provided history,
explaining that AHFC has owned 4.3 acres in mdtown
Anchorage since 1995; the corporation had planned to build
of fice space but the contract was cancelled. In 1997, AHFC
entered into an agreenent to |ease office space. In 1999

AHFC unsuccessfully sought |egislative approval to acquire
the property. Tatitlek Corporation bought the building for
$6 mllion and has been open to sell the property to AHFC

The native corporation wants the 4.3 acres that AHFC owns
and AHFC wants the building they are currently leasing from
Tatitl ek.

M. Fauske continued that there have been negotiations to
trade assets. Appraisals on the building show that it is
worth about $14.5 mllion. No cash will be required fromthe
| egi sl ature, |ease paynents wll be reduced, and AHFC wil |
acquire an asset. In addition, the increased net inconme wll
i ncrease the dividend available to the state.

M . Fauske added that the governor’s office had not objected
to the idea of AHFC purchasing the building. He referred to
a spread sheet wth detailed descriptions and figures
related to the properties (copy on file).

3:39: 59 PM

JOE DOOGLER, CHI EF FI NANCI AL OFFI CER, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE
CORPORATI ON, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, sunmari zed that the
net present value savings [of the trade] would be
approximately $7.5 mllion, and possibly $12 mllion. He
continued that the purchase price includes $2 mllion for
needed upgr ades.

Representative Foster cited experience with city taxes, and
reported that nost of a city can be tax-exenpt. He asked how
the proposal would affect tax income for Anchorage. M.
Fauske responded that the building would be tax exenpt as
AHFC would own it as a state entity. He referred to simlar
di scussi on regardi ng other property.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the taxable and tax-exenpt aspects
woul d cancel each other out. M. Fauske replied that it was
possi bl e.

3:43: 54 PM

Representative Gara asked whether the building was currently
not taxed because it was owned by Tatitlek Corporation. M.
Fauske thought it was being taxed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



Representative Gara wondered how nuch property tax revenue
the nmunicipality would |ose. M. Fauske responded that he
did not know but would find out.

Representative Gara asked if Anchorage would end up
collecting less noney. M. Fauske replied that the city
woul d collect |ess noney. He defended AHFC regarding taxes
because the corporation brings a | ot of assets to Anchorage.
He thought the issue was nore a state issue. He referred to
past debates with the | egislature regardi ng taxes.

3:45:31 PM

Representative Gara wanted to know the position of the
muni ci pality. M. Fauske did not know.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that the nunicipality is not asked in
other simlar situations.

Representati ve Fairclough spoke on the taxing issue. In her
experience, taxes do not go up but are spread across the
entire body. There are many conponents: property val ues
mght go up or down, the mll rate goes up or down,
dependi ng on Anchorage’s budget; but governnent spending is
not cut back when | ess tax incone is avail able.

Representative Gara asked for clarification. Representative
Fai rcl ough responded that state governnment has a bill for
various itens; if revenue declines, people who have the
ability pay in. She pointed to other variables, such as a
m ni - permanent fund that draws interest.

Representative Gara asked whether AHFC s fund and ability to
further its mssion would be inpacted if AHFC purchased the
bui | di ng.

3:48: 17 PM

M. Fauske responded that there would only be a cash
di spl acenent and other prograns would not in any way be
af f ect ed.

Representative Fairclough asked whether there would be a
small increase in incone to the state. M. Fauske replied
that there would be a positive increnent because AHFC woul d
be spending |l ess in operating expenses and 75 percent of the
corporation’s net inconme is available for appropriation by
t he state.

Vi ce-Chair Thonms asked for clarification about the trade.
M. Fauske responded that the anount of the |and val ue,
estimated at between $4.5 mllion and $5 mllion, would be
deducted from the $14.5 mllion and AHFC would owe the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 02/09 3:06 P. M



difference. The additional revenue from the second piece of
| and woul d al so be deduct ed.

Vi ce-Chair Thomas asked whether the anendnent would give
| egislative authority to release the assets. M. Fauske
expl ai ned that AHFC needs authority to purchase a buil ding.
He stressed that in the present proposal AHFC would be
exchangi ng and not di sposing an asset.

M. Doogler interjected that AHFC would be disposing an
asset as well. He added that AHFC also has the statutory
authority to dispose of assets. M. Fauske clarified that
AHFC cannot sell assets as a private entity would; there is
a public process.

M. Doogler pointed out that Anchorage would get nore taxes
from the land when it is developed, which would replace
taxes | ost by AHFC acquiring the buil ding.

3:51: 54 PM

Co- Chair Hawker asked about the quality and desirability of
the exchanged land in the Anchorage market. M. Fauske
responded that |and on 34" street was appraised in 2008 at
$4,168,000; current market value would put it closer to
between $4.7 million and $5.1 million. As of February 2008
the 1.4 acres at Boniface and DeBarr was appraised at
$511, 000; current market value could be slightly higher.

Co-Chair Hawker queried the probability of the property
bei ng devel oped. M. Fauske responded that there was a very
hi gh probability that Tatitlek Corporation would devel op the
site. Co-Chair Hawker confirmed that the property would be
devel oped for taxable comercial purposes.

Co-Chair Hawker asked whether AHFC would be the only
occupant of the building acquired. M. Fauske replied that
one tenant, the Al aska Public Safety Enployees Union,
occupies a small space. Co-Chair Hawker confirmed that there
was no commercial plaza invol ved.

M. Fauske stated that AHFC needs to own a building. He did
not want higher |eases and thought the opportunity was good
as the location is centrally |located and the property wll
only increase in value. He did not feel the anmendnent woul d
harm HB 161.

3:55: 59 PM

Co- Chair Hawker noted that questions he had had regarding
deferred nai ntenance and ot her issues had been answered. He
hoped negotiations would continue in such a way that the
state would receive the best value possible. M. Fauske
agr eed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 02/09 3:06 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze spoke to personal experience with an AHFC
pur chase and appreci ated the open process.

Representative Gara stated his support but wanted to hear
fromthe nunicipality. M. Fauske replied that he woul d get
t he information.

3:59: 04 PM

Representative Sal non asked which native corporation owned
the building. M. Fauske responded Tatitlek Corporation, a
subsi di ary of Chugach Al aska Cor porati on.

Representative Kelly asked if there would be further issues.
M. Bitney stated that “this is it.” M. Fauske explained
t hat the purchase of the building was originally going to be
a stand-alone bill.

Co-Chair Hawker WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being no
further objection, Amendnent 1 was ADOPTED

HB 161 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

4:02: 30 PM AT EASE
4:06: 22 PM RECONVENED
#hb3

HOUSE BILL NO 3

"An Act relating to issuance of identification cards
and to issuance of driver's licenses; and providing for
an effective date."

4:06: 22 PM

Representative Hawker MOVED to ADOPT CSHB 3 (FIN), version
26- LS0008\ P, Luckhaupt, 3/30/09 (copy on file), as a working
docunent .

Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for DI SCUSSI ON.

DI RK  MOFFET, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE BOB LYNN, SPONSOR,
introduced the title change of the proposed CS because of
added | anguage.

JERRY LUCKHAUPT, LEGQ SLATIVE COUNCIL, DIVISION OF LEGAL
SERVI CES, explained that the change was made because of
| anguage dealing with regulation authority in response to
guestions that had been raised.

4:07:57 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



M . Mffet turned to the next change, regarding a
typographical error on page 1, line 9 and page 2, line 1

M. Luckhaupt added that the change was made in response to
previ ous | egislation by Representative Crawford.

M. Mffet explained the third change extending the
expiration date of cards issued to persons 60 years and
ol der on page 2, line 1. Language in version A was changed
since the identification cards are free to senior citizens
and their physical appearance does not change as fast as
t hat appearance of younger citizens. The sponsor believed
that extending the expiration date on the cards would be
good business; senior citizens wuld visit the Division of
Mot or Vehicles (DW) less often. He stressed that fewer DW
custonmers would nean |less staff resource. Amendnent 3 was
offered to make the cards never expire for those over 60
years of age. However, federal regulation (the Real |ID Act
of 2005) stipulated that eight years was the |ongest
expiration date allowed. He pointed out that the change
doubl ed the expiration date fromfive years to ten years and
had the added benefit of being non-conpliant wth the Rea

| D Act.

M. Mffet noved to the fourth change regarding anti-Real ID
| anguage related to identification cards to conformwth AS
44.99.040, Limtations on Certain State Expenditures. He
read the | anguage added in version P to page 2, lines 27-29,
stating that the Comm ssioner of Admnistration may not
adopt regulations related to identification cards solely to
bring the state into conpliance with the requirenents of the
federal Real 1D Act of 2005.

M. Mffet detailed that the fifth change also added anti -
Real 1D language related to driver licenses. Language was
added on pages 2 and 3, lines 30-31 stating that for section
four, AS 28.05.011 is omtted by adding a new section to
read that the Comm ssioner of Adm nistration may not adopt
regul ations related to driver licenses solely to bring the
state into conpliance with the Real 1D Act.

4:12: 04 PM

M. Luckhaupt explained that the |anguage changes were
requested to make sure the Departnent of Admnistration
(DOA) does not try to bring the state into conpliance with
the Real I D Act through regulation. He noted that the added
| anguage had necessitated the title change.

M. Mffet concluded wth the sixth change, anti-Real ID
di scl ai mer |anguage on page 5, lines 15-17. Language was
added to enphasi ze non-cooperation with the Real ID Act. He
spoke of two anmendnents adding the anti-Real ID |anguage to
HB 3; neither acconplished the desired goal and | anguage was

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



drafted addi ng | anguage congruent with Real ID statute yet
tailored to deal with the subject of identification cards

and driver |icenses. The anti-Real 1D disclainmer |anguage
was also added to clarify that although the state has
adopted legal presence law, the bill was deliberately

drafted to be non-conpliant with the Real ID Act. The
sponsors believed that Al aska should determne for itself
the perineters of good business practice.

4:14: 48 PM

Representative Foster did not think the issue was a probl em
for his constituents and wondered why the issue was being
brought up. M. Mffet replied that currently in regulation
the primary docunent nust be brought to DW when getting a
license for the first time. The requirenent will be put into
statute by the |egislation.

Representative Foster questioned the need for putting the
requirenent in statute. M. Mffet replied that the sponsors
believe the policy is good. He enphasized that the bill also
allows the DW to be flexible about the expiration date. He
acknowl edged that the provision would not affect rural
conmuni ties.

Representative Foster reiterated his questions. M. Mffet
expl ai ned the desire to keep people who are in Al aska for a
l[imted tinme period from allowing their |egal presence to
expire and still be able to keep an Al aska driver’s |license.

4:17:12 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze pointed out that the changes wanted by
commttee nenbers had been covered. He WTHDREW his
OBJECTION. There being no further QBECTION, the CS was
adopt ed.

Representative Kelly commented that his questions had been
answered. He agreed that people who were in Alaska illegally
should not be allowed to drive. He spoke in support of the
| egi sl ati on.

Representative Joul e asked whether the passage of the bil
woul d give | aw enforcenent an excuse to stop people to check
their identifications. M. Luckhaupt replied that the
measure would not allow | aw enforcenent to pull anyone over
wi thout justification. In Alaska, there nust be probable
cause of a violation of lawin order to pull sonmeone over.

4:19: 59 PM

M. Luckhaupt added that the issue had come up in other
states as well when states have wanted to set up check-
points. He stated that the only way a state can set up a

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



check point is to check U S. citizenship where the state had
entered into an agreenent wth the Immgration and
Nat uralization Service (INS) or Custons and Border Patrol
Florida has entered into the agreement wth sone |[|aw
enforcement, but nost states have not.

Co-Chair Stoltze assuned the present admnistration would
not enbrace the issue.

4:21:30 PM

Representative Crawford asked a question regarding the
statenment that the Conm ssioner of DOA being unable to adopt
regul ation related to identification cards in order to bring
the state into conpliance with the Real ID Act. M.
Luckhaupt replied that the word “solely” was added so that
regul ation could be added for other valid reasons.

M. Luckhaupt added regarding a previous question that
people can be stopped in Alaska for probable cause or
reasonabl e suspicion of inmmnent physical danger to the
public. He provided an exanpl e.

Co-Chair Stoltze described experience with |ocal police
setting up DU (drinking under the influence) road blocks
and questioned the legality of the practice. M. Luckhaupt
replied that in Al aska, the question is open as to whether
sobriety checkpoints are legal. He added that the U.S.
Suprene Court has said that the checkpoints are |egal for
purposes of the U S. Constitution; that has not been decided
in Al aska.

4:24: 44 PM AT EASE
4:24:52 PM RECONVENED

Representative Crawford pointed out that the provision s
wor di ng actually could allow regul ati on adopting the Real 1D
Act and questioned the use of the word “solely.” M.
Luckhaupt explained that the only purpose of the provision
was regulation authority. He added that another previously
passed provision prevents any state agency from adopting
regul ations to inplement the Real ID Act; this will be the
fourth place in statute stating that Al aska would not conply
with the Real 1D Act.

Representative Crawford believed that the offending word was
“solely.” He read the passage wthout the word: “If the
Conmi ssioner of Administration may not adopt a regulation
related to identification cards to bring the state into
conpliance.” He thought the passage would nmake it clear that
regulation could not conply with the act. M. Luckhaupt
responded that the word “solely” would nean that regulation
can be adopted for another valid reason.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



Representative Crawford proposed saying “with the intent to
bring the state into conpliance” instead of “solely.” He
t hought the intent would be clear. He asked whether the
presence of the word “solely” would say that it is fine to
adopt the Real ID Act as long as there is another purpose.

4:27:26 PM

M. Luckhaupt replied that the word “solely” allows other
reasons.

Representative Crawford asked if the word “solely” could
allow the Real ID Act to be adopted. M. Luckhaupt answered
that the word “solely” allows the Conm ssioner of
Adm nistration to adopt any regulation relating to
identification cards providing it is not solely adopted in
order to inplenent the Real ID Act. He interpreted this to
mean that if there is any other valid reason for adopting
the regulation, the fact that it brings the state into
conpliance with the Real ID Act does not matter. He stated
that he had drafted the |anguage as he was instructed, but
added that the way it is drafted leads to the
interpretation. As long as there is any other valid reason,
bringing the state into conpliance is okay with the word
“solely” present, even if the conm ssioner wants to bring
the state into conpliance with the Real 1D Act.

4:28:48 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that the sane issue had been
contentious in a previous neeting.

Representative Gara pointed out that the word “solely” was
proposed because no one has cone up with acceptabl e | anguage
for the provision; what is clear is that the state does not
want DW to inplenent the Real 1D Act. He thought the
response to Representative Crawford’ s question was yes. He
presented a hypothetical: A conmm ssioner has the secret
intent to inplenment the Real ID Act, but says the purpose is
to save noney. He asked whether the hypothetical would be
possible even though it violates the intention of the
| egi sl ation.

M. Mffet clarified that he word “solely” was used because
the Real ID Act would not allow DW staff to be trained
regarding fraudul ent docunment detection, for exanple. He
stated that many current good business practices would be
di scarded if the commttee wanted a strict prohibition on
anything in the Real 1D Act. He described the Real I D Act as
a “laundry list” of all the good ideas that the states cane
up with; he opined that sone of the ideas are good and sone
bad. For exanple, the sponsor thought that putting the |egal
presence expiration date directly on soneone’s card was not
a good business practice, even though the Real 1D Act would

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



allow it. Al Alaskan cards would | ook the same except for
the expiration date; only looking very closely at the
expiration date would indicate the legal status of the
hol der.

M. Mffet stated that the sponsor wanted the word “sol ely”
left in the provision in order to conformto what is already
in statute and not re-wite the anti-Real ID Act |egislation
al ready passed.

Representative Gara wanted his question answered. M .
Luckhaupt replied that the answer woul d be yes.

Representative Gara described the conundrum the |egislature
does not want DW to inplenment the Real ID Act, but the
| anguage nakes it possible for a DW person to inplenment it.
He asked whether the legislative intent in the CS was good
enough to protect the state from a comm ssioner who wanted
to inplenent the Real ID Act. M. Mffet replied that the
| egi sl ature oversees the DW and can change anything they do
not want through statute; the division cannot inplenent the
Real D Act.

4:34:15 PM

M. Luckhaupt noted that the provision passed | ast year said
the division should not be inplenenting the act. He
acknow edged that the hypothetical of the director wanting
to inplenent the act was possible.

Representative Gara stated for the record that the intention
is to prevent DW frominplenenting the Real 1D Act and that
no | anguage has been found to nmake that clearer. He thought
Representative Crawford s question was still a concern but
he could not find better |anguage.

Representative Foster queried possible penalties for not
conplying with the federal requirenents.

VWH TNEY BREWSTER, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF MOTOR VEH CLES,
DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATION (via tel econference), testified
that there are sonme penalties for not conplying with the
Real I D Act by the end of 2009. She detailed that residents

of states that do not issue Real |ID Act conpliant
identification cards or driver licenses will not be able to
access federal facilities and will not be able to board

ai rpl anes w thout secondary screening.

4:36:48 PM

Co- Chair Hawker spoke to difficulties in Alaska and the
necessity of identification. He pointed to state statute and
regul ati ons connected with obtaining identification cards.
He queried the additional difficulties that mght be

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



incurred for renewing identification ~cards if t he
| egi sl ati on passed.

REPRESENTATI VE BOB  LYNN, SPONSOR, expl ai ned that t he
provision would not change things for Al askans but for
people comng from out-of-state and for people who are
tenporarily on a visa or work permt.

Co- Chair Hawker agreed that the additional burden is not on
state residents but on other classes of individuals.

4:40: 31 PM

Representative Foster described difficulties experienced by
people in the Bush who have to travel |ong distances to get
identification cards.

Co- Chair Hawker asked M. Moffet to respond to his question.

M. Moffet described changes the bill would put in place

Al askans who renew driver licenses will not have to show
primary docunents. Al askans who have allowed their driver’s
license to expire wll be allowed 90 extra days to renew
wi t hout showi ng primary docunents; this provision was put in
for people in rural areas. The 90-day w ndow was chosen
because statute stipulates that people new to Al aska have 90

days to change their license to an Alaska state drivers
license.
4.:43: 09 PM

Co- Chair Hawker queried additional difficulties that would
be caused by the legislation. Ms. Brewster did not think the
provi sion would increase the burden on people who currently
hold an Alaska driver’s license. She addressed concerns
about people from rural areas. She recognized the bigger
chal l enges to those who do not have direct access to a DW
office, but pointed out that people can renew through the
mai |

Ms. Brewster referred to future legislation that would all ow
for renewi ng online. She explained that the issue is the new

digital license. The last of the old Polaroid licenses wll
expire this year, requiring people to cone to an office in
person to capture a digital |ikeness.

4.:45:18 PM

Representative Foster commented on the federal governnent
directing state deci sions.

Co- Chair Hawker MOVED to report CSHS 3 (FIN) as anended from

Committee w th i ndi vi dual recormendati ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



Representative Gara OBJECTED for discussion. He comented
that the rules in place already keep illegal immgrants from
getting a driver’s license and the proposed |aw woul d not
change the rules aside from extending renewal tinme for
senior citizens. He noted that Ilegislation on divisive
i ssues increases problens and does not change anyt hi ng.

Representative Gara W THDREW hi s OBJECTI ON

Representative Foster comrented on the situation in rura
Al aska where everyone knows each ot her

There being NO further OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

CSHS 3 (FIN) was REPCORTED out of Committee with a “do pass”
recomendation and with a previously published fiscal note:

FNL ( ADM) .

#hb98
HOUSE BILL NO._ 98

"An Act relating to mnor consumng and repeat m nor
consum ng; and providing for an effective date."

4:49: 02 PM

Co-Chair Hawker noted that there would be two amendnents to
the bill.

JANE PIERSON, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE JAY RAMAS, SPONSOR,
provided history regarding HB 98, explaining that HB 359,
| egi slation anmending mnors consumng statutes, had been
passed the previous year, but had created a new problem
rel ated to convictions.

Co- Chair Hawker clarified that new | anguage woul d provide a
techni cal correction.

Representative Gara MOVED Anmendnent 1, 26- LSO05\ A. 4,
Luckhaupt, 4/1/09 (copy on file):

Page 1, line 1, following both occurrences of
“consum ng”: _ _
| nsert “or in possession or control”

Page 1, following line 3:
Insert a new bill section to read:
“*Section 1. AS 04.16.050(b) is anmended to read:

(b) A person who violates (a) of this section
and who has not been previously convicted or
recei ved a suspended inposition of sentence under
(1) of this subsection is guilty of mnor
consuming or in possession or control. Mnor

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



consuming or in possession or control is a
violation. Upon conviction in the district court,
t he court

(1) my grant a suspended inposition of
sentence under AS 12.55.085 and place the person
on probation for up to one year if the person has
not been convicted of a violation of this section
previ ously; anmong the conditions of probation, the
court shall, wth the consent of a community
di version panel, refer the person to the panel
and require the person to conply with conditions
set by the panel, including counseling, education,
treatnment, community work, and paynent of fees; in
this paragraph, “community diversion panel” neans
a youth court or other group selected by the court
to serve as a sentencing option for a person
convi cted under this section; or

(s) shall inpose a fine of at |east $200

but not nore than $600, shall require the person
to attend al cohol information school if the school
is available, and shall place the person on
probation for up to one year under (e) of this
section; the court may suspend a portion of the
fine i1inposed under this paragraph that exceeds
$200 iif the person is required to pay for
education or treatnent required under (e) of this
section.”

Page 1, line 4:
Del ete “Section 1”
| nsert “Sec. 2"

Renunber the follow ng bill sections accordingly.
Page 1, line 9, follow ng “section.”:

| nsert “Repeat_ninor consuning or in possession or
control is a violation.”

Page 2, follow ng line 15:
Insert new bill sections to read:
“*Sec. 4. AS 04.16.050(1) is anmended by adding a new
par agr aph to read:
(4) “violation” has the neaning given in AS
11.81.900 and the penalties that are provided in this
secti on.
*Sec. 5. The uncodified |law of the State of Alaska is
anmended by adding a new section to read:
LEGQ SLATI VE RECOGNI TI ON OF EFFECT OF DEFI NI TI ON.
The | egi sl ature recogni zes that
(1) the definition of “violation” in AS
11.81.900(b) (63) provides that persons charged with a
violation are not entitled to counsel or a trial by
jury; and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



(2) not wi t hst andi ng t he definition of
“violation” in AS 11.81.900(b)(63), persons charged
with a first offense m nor consumng or in possession
or control or wth repeat mnor consuming or in
possession or control under AS 04.16.050 are entitled
to counsel and a trial by jury under the decision of
the Al aska Court of Appeals in State v. Auliye, 57 P.3d
711 (Al aska App. 2002).”

Renunber the follow ng bill sections accordingly.
Co- Chair Hawker OBJECTED for DI SCUSSI ON.

Representative Gara expl ained that the anendnent woul d cl ear
up whether the first two convictions would be considered a
crinme. He did not want a young person to be charged with a
crime for the first two violations. He expressed
frustration.

4:52:23 PM

Co- Chair Hawker queried the position of the sponsor on the
amendnent. Ms. Pierson stated that Representative Ranras did
not support the anmendnent. She spoke to the sponsor’s desire
to keep the bill clean regarding the m nor consum ng statute
and his feeling that the anmendnment could cloud the issue.

4:53:17 PM

DOUG WOOLI VER, ADM NI STRATI VE ATTORNEY, ALASKA COURT SYSTEM
understood the desire to have the statute clear so that the
courts would understand that the first two of fenses are not
crimnal offenses. He stated that the law itself is not
unclear and that the court will not count the first two
of fenses as crines. He acknow edged that the defendants do
not al ways know t hat.

M. Wooliver declared that the concern about adding the word
“violation” is its definition in statute; this offense is
contrary to that definition in alnost all respects. He
poi nted out that adding the word “violation” would not be a
sinple fix and judges agree that an additional |ayer of
confusion woul d be added. The definition of “violation” is a
crime that is punishable only by a fine, which does not
apply to the statute. The definition also includes an
of fense for which the defendant does not get counsel, which
al so does not apply. Another definition is an offense for
whi ch the defendant is not entitled to a jury trial, which
al so does not apply.

M. Woliver stated that the courts were concerned about
adding a definition that in all respects is contrary to what
the bill actually does. He agreed wth the drafter that
technically the offense would be a violation, but calling it

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



a violation creates a lot of confusion because of the
definition. He pointed out that the courts have been dealing
with m nor consumng issues in the |legislation for sone tine
and thought the statute was cl ose to working.

Co- Chair Hawker asked for clarification regarding what was
meant by the “host of judges” who had been consulted. M.
Wholiver replied that he routinely asked for comments from
judges regarding the possible inpact of [legislation

Comments regarding HB 98 had i ndi cated concerns about adding
conf usi on.

Co- Chair Hawker asked whether he neant that seated nenbers
of the Al aska bench have confided that they have exam ned
t he | anguage and expressed concerns regarding their ability
to inplement the |anguage. M. Woliver responded in the
affirmative.

4:56: 54 PM

Representative Gara admitted frustration in not having the
judges present to be questioned. M. Woliver replied that
the judges disagreed wth him from time to tine.
Representative Gara wondered how the |anguage of the bil
was developed. He felt that the statute |anguage should be
clearer. He opined that the issue was sinple.

Representati ve Joul e wondered whether using |anguage about
intent would clarify the issue.

Co- Chair Hawker MAI NTAINED his OBJECTION to Amendnent 1. He
felt that the court system should speak to Representative
Gara’'s office about his concerns.

Representative Kelly asked for clarification. He felt that
the |anguage needed revisiting. He suggested that mnors
mght msinterpret the |law upon reading it, but summarized
that he did not have a problemw th the existing | anguage.

5:00: 35 PM

Representati ve Gara enphasi zed that the lawis not clear. He
reiterated concerns that a mnor would think they had
commtted a crine. He asked whether the follow ng |anguage
woul d work: “Mnor consuming or in possession or in contro
is not a crinme.” Ms. Pierson pointed out that the |anguage
should meke it clear that only first and second m nor
consunm ng was neant.

Representative Gara referred to the |anguage regarding the
first and second convictions; he queried his suggested
| anguage: “M nor consumer or in possession or in control is
not a crine.” M. Woliver stated his willingness to work on
the |language with counsel. Representative Gara requested

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



vi abl e | anguage that could be used on the floor. M. Pierson
stated that the sponsor would not have a problem wth
| anguage that would work for everyone.

M. Woliver noted that he would continue to work wth
counsel on the | anguage.

5:03:26 PM

Co- Chair Hawker MAI NTAI NED his OBJECTI ON to Anendment 1
Representative Gara W THDREW Anendnent 1

Co- Chair Hawker MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 2, 6-LS0051\A. 5,
Luckhaupt, 4/2/092 (copy on file):

Page 1, line 1, follow ng "consum ng;"

Insert "relating to penalties for violations of |limtations
on possessing, sending, shipping, transporting, or bringing
al cohol i c beverages to, soliciting or receiving orders for
delivery of alcoholic beverages to, and the manufacture,
sale, offer for sale, barter, traffic, or possession of

al coholic beverages in, a local option area;"

Page 2, follow ng line 15:

Insert new bill sections to read:
"* Sec. 3. AS 04.16.200(h) is anmended to read:

(h) Upon conviction of a class C felony under (Db)
or (e)(2) or (3) of this section, the court

(1) shall inpose a fine of not |ess than

$10, 000 and a m ni rum sentence of inprisonnent of

(A) 120 days if the person has not been previously
convi cted [ ONCE];

(B) 240 days if the person has been previously
convi cted once [ TWO TI MES];

(C 360 days if the person has been previously
convicted two [ THREE] or nore tines;

(2) may not

(A) suspend execution of sentence or grant
probati on except on the condition that the person

(i) serve the m ninmuminprisonment under (1) of
this subsection; and

(i1) pay the mninmumfine required under (1) of
this subsection; or

(B) suspend inposition of sentence.
* Sec. 4. The uncodified law of the State of Alaska is
anmended by adding a new section to read:

APPLI CABI LI TY. AS 04.16.200(h), as anmended by sec.
3 of this Act, applies to an offense occurring on or
after the effective date of this Act. References to
previ ous convictions in sec. 3 of this Act apply to
convictions occurring before, on, or after the
effective date of this Act."

House Fi nance Conmmittee 21 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



Renunmber the follow ng bill section accordingly.
Vi ce- Chair Thomas OBJECTED

Co- Chair Hawker shared that the |anguage in the anendnent is
linked to another bill in commttee related to limtations
on al cohol inportation. He reported that he had spoken wth
the co-chair of the commttee, who indicated that he had no
problem with the anmendnent as long as |egal counsel could
provi de assurances.

ANNE CARPENETI, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, LEGAL SERVI CES
SECTI ON- JUNEAU, CRIM NAL DI VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT OF LAW
testified that the anendnent attenpts to address previous
m stakes in SB 265. The intent of the legislation was to
adopt mandatory m ni mum penalties for bootlegging that were
the same as nmandatory mninuns for drunk driving.
Unfortunately, the definition of “previously convicted for
bootlegging” is different than for the term “previously
convicted for drunk driving.” In terns of felony bootl eggi ng
at least, the legislation passed did not do what it was
i ntended to do.

Ms. Carpeneti stated that Amendnent 2 woul d make the repair.
She reported that she had spoken with Representative Herron
and assured himregardi ng the | anguage.

5.07:19 PM

Representative Gara wondered about a concern wth the
underlying bill related to rural Al aska. He asked whether
Representative Herron objected to a portion of the bill. Co-

Chair Hawker answered yes. He reiterated that Representative
Herron was not concerned about the provisions in the
amendnent .

Representative Gara asked for clarification regarding how
t he amendnent corrects the bill. M. Carpeneti replied that
t he amendnment adopts the same mandatory m ni mum penalty for
first-tinme felony bootlegging and first-tinme felony drunk
dri vi ng.

Representative Gara felt that the crines were not equal in
weight. He felt that the first-tine $10,000 penalty plus 120
days in jail mght not be appropriate for a bootl egging
offense. M. Carpeneti replied that bootlegging has had
negative consequences in rural comunities that have voted
to be dry or danp. She stressed that both issues have |arge
effects on communities.

5:11:55 PM

Representative Joule agreed wth the language wth
reservations. He expressed concern regar di ng t he

House Fi nance Conmmittee 22 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



di sproportionate amount of rural Al askan males in the prison
system He shared that his comunity (Kotzebue) is a danp
community, but bootlegging is not Ilegal. Al cohol can be
inmported and consuned, but not sold. He described a
community |less than 200 mles away that can inport, consune,
and sell alcohol legally. He stated concerns about pushing
communities into going wet. He understood the conplexity of
the problens, but worried that at some point people could
figure out that voting to go wet would release the males in
prison.

5:14: 44 PM

Representative Gara deferred to rural |egislators regarding
the scope of the problem and the penalties and questioned
the felony level for first-time bootlegging. M. Carpeneti
expl ai ned how the current |aw works. The state has to prove
that the al cohol was brought in for the purposes of sale.
There is also a presunption that can be rebutted that
bringing in nore than 10.5 liters of distilled spirits, 24
liters of wine, or 12 gallons of malt I|iquor anounts to
transporting with the intent to sell.

5:16:39 PM

Ms. Carpeneti continued that SB 265 included that a third
conviction of bootlegging wuld be a Cass C felony and
smaller anmpbunts would be a Cdass A msdeneanor. She
indicated that past support for the neasure by rural
representation had pronpted subm ssion of the bill by the
depart nment.

Representative Foster thought there was not disincentive to
boot| eg because of high profits.

Vi ce-Chair Thomas spoke to past support from rural nenbers
for the provision.

Co-Chair Hawker queried the sponsor’s position regarding
Amendnent 2. Ms. Pierson replied that the sponsor did not
have a problemw th the anmendnent.

Vi ce-Chair Thomas W THDREW his OBJECTION. There being NO
further OBJECTION, it was so ordered. Anrendment 2 was
ADOPTED

5:20:17 PM

Representative Gara asked if his proposed |anguage “m nor
consum ng or in possession or control is not a crinme” would
successfully say that the first and second violations are
not a crine.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



JERRY LUCKHAUPT, LEGQ SLATIVE COUNCIL, DIVISION OF LEGAL
SERVI CES, testified that he agreed with the concept that the
of fense should be denom nated. He pointed out that the
| egislature identifies every type of <crimnal statute.
However, the offenses are violations; the word is used in
Title IV for any non-crimnal offense dealt with in the
crimnal justice system He did not wunderstand why the
magi strates had a problem He stated concerns about saying
the offense is not a crinme, including that they would be
considered a civil offense, necessitating litigation of all
t he i ssues again.

Representative Gara noted that there are only two offenses
in the state, civil and crimnal. He asked if there was
statute |anguage that the offense was a violation. M.
Luckhaupt responded that it does not say the offense is a
vi ol ati on.

Representative Gara asked whether the offenses were being
interpreted as a violation even though the statute does not
say it that way. M. Luckhaupt responded in the affirmative.

5:23:59 PM

Representative Gara stated that he only wanted to say that
m nor consumng is not a crine, which does not add or take
away the word. He queried objections to saying “not a
crinme.”

Co- Chair Hawker questioned the productiveness of the
conversation

5:26: 02 PM

Representative Kelly stated that he was confortable with the
amendnent .

Co- Chair Hawker agreed that he would support an anendnent
wi th both Representative Gara and the sponsor’s name on it.

Co- Chair Hawker noted the zero fiscal notes.

Vi ce-Chair Thomas MOWED to report CSHB 98 (FIN) out of
Comm ttee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CSHB 98 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Commttee with a “no
recommendation” and with a new zero fiscal note from the
Departnment of Public Safety and two previously published
fiscal notes: FN1 (CRT), FN2 (LAW.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

House Fi nance Conmmittee 24 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



The neeting was adjourned at 5:27 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 04/02/09 3:06 P. M



